LETTER OPI NI ON
93-L-23

February 1, 1993

M. Wayne O. Sol berg
Fargo City Attorney

P. O. Box 1897

Fargo, ND 58107- 1897

Dear M. Sol berg:

Thank you for your Decenber 7, 1992, letter concerning the
proposed bidding process for the construction of a new water
plant for the city of Fargo. Specifically, you ask whether the
city's proposed bidding process is consistent wth the
provisions of N.D.C.C. ch. 48-02.

In your letter, you note the city's three-step bidding process
as follows:

1. Solicit separate bids for general, nechanical and
el ectrical work on the project.

2. Award contracts to the |owest and best bidder for
each of the three conponents.

3. Assign the electrical and nechanical contracts to
t he gener al contractor. The ori gi nal bi ddi ng
docunments would provide that the nechanical and
el ectrical contractors would be required to consent
to the assignnent, as would the general contractor.

Using this procedure, the <city intends to place greater

supervi sory responsibility in t he gener al contractor
attenpting to alleviate the potential for disputes between the
general, nmechanical and electrical contractors. The city's

proposal contenplates soliciting separate prine bids for the
general, nmechanical and electrical work, but having the work
performed as if it were bid as a single prine contract.

N.D.C.C. ? 48-02-05.1 provides:

48- 02- 05. 1. Bi d requirements and accept ance.
Conpetitive bids for the work for which plans, draw ngs,
and specifications are required by section 48-02-02 nust
be allowed to be submtted as nultiple prime bids for the
general , el ectrical, and nechani cal contracts when
applicable. In addition to the required nmultiple prine
bi ds, the governing board my also allow subm ssion of
single prime bids or bids for other portions of the
project. Determining bids for other portions of the
project is the responsibility of the governing board. The
governing board may not accept the single prine bid
unless that bid is lower than the conmbined total of the
| owest and best bids for the contracts.



I n addressing your concerns, it is inportant to acknow edge
the legislative history of NDCC ? 48-02-05.1. In 1991,
N.D.C.C. ? 48-02-05.1 was anended as foll ows:

Conpetitive bids for the work for which plans, draw ngs,
and specifications are required by section 48-02-02 may
nust be allowed to be submtted as nultiple prinme bids
for the stAgte—project—tndividual—brd—For general

electrical, and mechani cal contracts;> when applicable. In
addition to the required nultiple prinme bids, t he
governing board nay also allow subm ssion of single prine
bids or bids for other portions of the project.
Determ ning bids for other portions of the project is the
responsibility of the governing board. The governing
board may not accept the single projeet prinme bids
unless that bid is lower than the conbined total of the

| owest and best bids for g¢genreral——eteetrtecal—mand
mrechanteat the contracts.

1991 N.D. Sess. Laws ch 494, ? 2. The intent of this
amendnent was to clarify legislation enacted during the 1989
| egi sl ative session. The intent of the 1989 |egislation was
to encourage participation in the conpetitive bidding process
by providing each bidder the choice of submtting a single
prime bid for the entire construction project or separate bids
for the general, electrical and nmechanical contracts. See 1989
N. D. Sess. Laws ch. 562. Under this schene a small contractor
who did not have the resources to bid the entire project m ght
be able to bid one of the individual segnents. Allow ng the
governing body to negotiate directly with separate general,
mechani cal and el ectrical contractors, rather than through the
single prime general <contractor as a "mddle man," was
considered to be nore cost efficient. Additionally, the
statute was enacted to prevent the single prime general
contractor from "bi d shoppi ng" anong I ndi vi dua
subcontractors. Hearing on S. 2418 Before the House Industry,
Busi ness and Labor Conmm, 51st N D. Leg. (March 8, 1989)
(Statements of Tom Tupa, NECA, NDAPHMC, and Greg Dockter).

The city's proposal conplies with part of the requirenments of
N.D.C.C. ? 48-02-05.1 by soliciting separate prinme bids for
the general, electrical and nechanical contracts and by
awardi ng the contract to the |owest and best bidder for each
of the required nmultiple prime bids. The third step of the
proposed bidding process in which the electrical and
mechani cal contracts are assigned to the general contractor
is, in my opinion, inconsistent with the bidding requirenents
of NND.C.C. ?? 48-02-05.1 and 48-02-06.

N.D.C.C. ? 48-02-06 requires that the governing board "award
the contract, subject to section 48-02-05.1, to the | owest and

best bidder." "Award" is defined by one source as "[t]o grant,
concede, or adjudge to." BLACK' S LAW DI CTI ONARY 125 (5th ed.
1979). "An assignnent is the transfer or making over to

anot her of any property in possession or in action, or any
right therein." Rheault v. Tennefos Construction Co., 189
N. W2d 626, 629 (N.D. 1971). See also Industrial Indem Co. V.




Anderson, 692 F. Supp. 1532 (D.N.D. 1988) (Assignnent of an
instrunment vests in the transferee the same rights that the
transferor had therein.). Requiring the successful electrica
and nechanical contractors to assign their contracts to the
general contractor is in design dianetric to the requirenent
that the successful bidder be awarded the contract.

The better way to proceed would be to incorporate notice in

t he bidding specifications that the contracts will require the
successf ul mechani cal and electrical contractors to Dbe
supervised by the general contractor. In this fashion, the

city's intent is acconplished w thout being inconsistent with
t he bidding process under N.D.C.C. ch. 48-02.

| trust this answers your concerns.

Si ncerely,

Hei di Heit kanp
ATTORNEY GENERAL

dec/ krb



